
United Nations 
J 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
FIFTEENTH SESSION 

0 fficial Records 

CONTENTS 

United K ations Operations in the Congo: 1961 cost esti-

Page 

mates and financing (continued) . . . . . 19 

Chairman: Mr. Mario MAJOLI (Italy). 

UNITED NATIONS OPERATIONS IN THE CONGO: 
1961 COST ESTIMATES AND FINANCING (A/4703, 
A/4713, A/C.5/860, A/C.5/L.657) (continued) 

1. The CHAIRMAN read out the following draft 
resolution submitted by India (A/C.5/L.657, provi­
sional text) : 

"The General Assembly, 
"Bearing in mind that the authorization contained 

in its resolution 1590 (XV) of 20 December 1960 
relating to the expenditures in 1%1 for the United 
Nations operations in the Congo covers the period 
from 1 January to 31 March 1961 only, 

"Recognizing that the question of the 1961 cost 
estimates and financing of these operations is cur­

. rently under consideration, 
"Authorizes the Secretary-General, pending action 

by the General Assembly at its resumed fifteenth ses­
sion, and without prejudice to such action, to con­
tinue until 21 April 1%1 to incur commitments for 
the United Nations operations in the Congo at a level 
not to exceed $8,000,000 per month." 

2. Mr. B. K. NEHRU (India) 'said he wished to 
make it clear that, in submitting the draft resolution, he 
had no wish in any way to prejudge the decision the 
General Assembly might take with regard to the sub­
stance of the problem; the main purpose of his proposal 
was to ensure that the United Nations operations in the 
Congo should not be interrupted as a result of an over­
sight on the part of the General Assembly. The proposal 
should therefore be considered solely from the procedural 
angle. His delegation had abstained in the vote on Gen­
eral Assembly resolution 1590 (XV), but it considered 
that the Secretary-General should be given the funds to 
carry on the action which had been undertaken until 
further notice. 
3. Mr. ARRAtz (Venezuela) said that in his view 
the draft resolution was indispensable and, as the Indian 
representative had said, was merely a matter of proce­
dure. Nevertheless, the first preambular paragraph re­
ferred to resolution 1590 (XV), which in turn referred 
to resolution 1583 (XV) in which the General Assembly 
recognized that the expenses involved in the United 
Nations operations in the Congo for 1960 constituted 
expenses of the Organization within the meaning of 
Article 17, paragraph 2, of the Charter of the United 
Nations and that the assessment thereof against Member 

19 

FIFTH COMMITTEE 829th 
MEETING 

Thursday, 30 March 1961, 
at 3.30 p.m. 

New York 

States created binding legal obligations on such States 
to pay their assessed shares. It would not be appropriate 
for the General Assembly to refer even indirectly to that 
resolution while at the same time recognizing that the 
question of cost estimates and financing of the operations 
was currently under consideration. The first preambular 
paragraph, which was not strictly necessary, could accord­
ingly be deleted; that would entail a change in the word­
ing of the second preambular paragraph. 
4. In accordance with the position which it had adopted, 
his delegation would in any case abstain from voting on 
the draft resolution in question; if, however, its sugges­
tion was not accepted, it would have to vote againf.lt it. 

5. Mr. B. K. NEHRU (India) said that he acknowl­
edged the cogency of the Venezuelan represent~ttive' s 
remarks and was prepared to accept his proposal, par­
ticularly as the Indian delegation, when it had voted 
against resolution 1583 (XV), had stated that it did 
not regard the expenditure in question as "expenses of 
the Organization" within the meaning of Article 17, 
paragraph 2, of the Charter. 

6. Mr. ROSHCHIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publics) thought that to treat the draft resolution as a 
procedural matter was to underestimate its importance . 
\Vhat in fact was being proposed was that the Secretary­
General should be authorized to continue to incur com­
mitments in the Congo; that had great political signifi­
cance. Moreover, his delegation did not ~tgree that the 
General Assembly and the Committee had the right to 
consider and to take a decision on that matter. The 
Security Council alone could decide whether the opera­
tions in the Congo should be continued and, if so, on 
what 'scale. Lastly, such expenditure was contntry to the 
purposes of the Security Council resolutions of 14 July, 
22 July and 9 August 1960,1 and to other decisions 
taken subsequently. 
7. In view of the importance of the issue, it was neces­
sary that representatives should be given time to receive 
instructions and to state the position of their delegations. 
He found it surprising that the Chairman should be ask­
ing for a vote to be taken so ISQon, in view of the fact 
that rules 80 and 121 of the rules of procedure of the 
General Assembly stipulated that, as a general rule, no 
proposal should be discussed or put to the vote at any 
meeting unless copies of it had been circulated to all 
delegations not later than the day preceding the meeting. 
H was not right to curtail the discussion in that way 
when the representatives of the United States and the 
United Kingdom had been able to speak at their con­
venience. In any case, hasty decisions should be avoided. 

8. The CHAIRMAN pointed out that the rules of 
procedure referred to by the USSR representative also 
provided that the Chairman might permit the discussion 

1 Official Records of the Security Council, Fifteenth Year 
Supplement for July, August and September 1960 document~ 
S/4387, S/4405, and S/4426, respectively. ' 

Aj<I.S /SR.829 



20 General Assembly-Fifteenth Session-Fifth Committee 

and consideration of amendments, or of motions as to 
procedure, even though those amendments and motions 
had not been circulated or had only been circulated the 
same day. As the representatives of India and Venezuela 
had said, the decision to be taken in no way prejudged 
those of the General Assembly. Lastly, the decision was 
a matter of urgency, since the authorization given to 
the Secretary-General under resolution 1590 (XV) was 
valid only until 31 March. 
9. Mr. ROSHCHIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publics) said tha:t he saw no reason for departing from 
the normal procedure. The question of the financing of 
the operations in the Congo had been under consideration 
for a long time; there was no justification for waiting 
until the last minute to submit a proposal of that kind 
and then pleading that the situation was urgent. 
10. Mr. GARCIA ROBLES (Mexico) expressed hi's 
thanks to the Indian representative for having accepted 
the Venezuelan representative's suggestion. He would 
have been compelled to vote against the original text of 
draft resolution A/C.5/L.657 for the same reasons as 
those given by the representative of Venezuela. He 
would abstain from voting on the amended text. Unfor­
tunately, irt was not the first time that the Committee was 
faced with a draft resolution of that kind : requests were 
made to it for appropriations, while the question of how 
those appropriations would be financed was postponed 
until a later date. Methods of financing were subsequently 
adopted despite the serious objections raised by many 
countries. 
11. Nevertheless, he agreed that the draft resolution 
should be put to the vote as soon as possible in view of 
the fact that the authorization granted to the Secretary­
General would expire very shortly. 
12. Mr. MOLEROV (Bulgaria) associated himself 
with the comments made by the USSR representative. 
The matter had been raised at shorrt notice and many 
delegations had been unable to ascertain the views of 
the chairman of their delegation. It was particularly un­
desirable that a hasty decision should be taken in view 
of the fact that the matter was one on which there were 
far-reaching differences of opinion. 
13. The CHAIRMAN put the Indian draft resolution, 
as amended, to the vote. 

The draft resolution, as amended (AjC.5jL.657), was 
adopted by 38 votes to 9, with 23 abstentions. 
14. The CHAIRMAN suggested that the Committee 
should authorize the Rapporteur to report directly to the 
General Assembly on the decision taken. 

It was so decided. 
15. Mr. ANDONI (Albania) said that he had intended 
to ask for a roil-call vote but, in the prevailing atmos­
phere of haste, he had been unable to do so. His delega­
tion had voted against the draft resolution because, like 
everything relating to ONUC, it was solely a matter for 
the Security Council. His country would not make any 
contribution towards the financing of such an illegal 
operation. 
16. Mr. GREZ (Chile) 'said that he had voted for the 
draft resolution since it would make it possible to avoid 
bringing the United Nations operation in the Congo 
to a full stop. Any share in that expenditure that might 
be taken by his country would depend on the approval of 
the Chilean Parliament and on the attitude of the other 
Latin American countries. 
17. Mr. QUIJANO (Argentina) said that he had 
voted for the draft resolution since, without in any way 

prejudging the substance of the question of the Congo 
operation, it enabled the Secretary-General to continue 
to carry out the instructions which he had been given, 
pending a decision by the General Assembly. 

18. Mr. PENTEADO (Brazil) explained that, while 
he had voted for the draft resolution, his vote in no way 
committed his country with regard to the methods 
whereby the operation would be financed. 

19. Mr. CUTTS (Australia) thought it regrettable 
that it should have been necessary to depart from the 
terms of rule 80 ( 121) of the rules of procedure of the 
General Assembly ; a draft resolution could quite as 
easily have been circulated to delegations during the 
preceding few days. The fault did not lie with the Secre­
tary-General, any more than it did with the members of 
delegations who, like the Secretary-General, had long 
known the urgency of the position and had been aware 
of the date on which 1:he authorizClltion previously granted 
to the Secretary-General would expire. But, regrettable 
though it was, the departure from the rules of procedure 
was fully justified by the urgency of the situClltion. 

20. The Indian representative had been perfectly right 
to stress the fact that the draft resolution which had just 
been approved was of a purely provisional and technical 
nature and in no way prejudged the decisions which 
would be taken by the General Assembly. Speaking as 
Rapporteur, he said that, in submitting the draft resolu­
tion to the General Assembly, he would stress those two 
aspects of the proposal. 

21. Mr. MOLEROV (Bulgaria) said that, during the 
first part of the session, he had voted againsrt resolution 
1590 (XV); he had just voted against the draft resolu­
tion for the same reasons. In accordance with Articles 
11, 43 and 48 of the Charter, any measure of that kind 
came solely within the province of the Security Council. 
It followed 1:hat the Fifth Committee had no authority 
to take a decision of any kind until the Security Council 
had dealt with the mClitter. The Fifth Committee had 
taken an improper course which had had disastrous effects 
on the budget of the Organization. If matters continued 
in that way, it was not only the budget that would be 
destroyed but the United Nations itself. In his view, 
contrary to what the representative of India had said, 
the resolution which had just been adopted did in fact 
affect the substance of the qu~stion and it had been for 
that reason that he had voted against it. 

22. Mr. SIM NHOK (Cambodia) said that, as he had 
already stated, his country could not pay more than 
one million old French francs. He had abstained in the 
recent vote because Cambodia was faced with serious 
difficulties; many of his fellow countrymen had had to 
return to the country as refugees as a result of the iii­
treatment which they had received in the Republic of 
Viet-Nam. The appeals which Cambodia had made to 
the United Nations in that connexion had always fallen 
on deaf ears. 

23. U AUNG TRANT (Burma) thought that the draft 
resolution submitted by India was necessary in order to 
bridge the gap which would have occurred between the 
d3ite of expiry of the authorization given to the Secretary­
General in connexion with 'the financing of the operation 
and the decision which would be reCliChed by the General 
Assembly. His delegation had abstained, not because it 
did not realize the difficulties of the position, but be­
cause it could not as yet accept any definite financial 
commitments. He hoped nevertheless that he would soon 
be able to inform the Committee of his Government's 



829th meeting-30 March 1961 21 

position with regard to the financing of ONUC 
expenditure. 

24. Mr. ROSHCHIN (Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publics) said that, as his delegation had already pointed 
out, the question of the 1%1 cost estimates for the 
"United Nations operations" in the Congo had to be 
decid~d in the. light of. the . decisions taken by the 
Secunty Council concemmg, m particular, the extent 
<~;nd duration. of. t~ose operations and the dispatch of con­
t~ngents by mdlVldual Member States, since such ques­
tions, which were associated with "measures" for the 
m~in~enance of i~temational peace and security, can1e 
withm the exclustve province of the Security Council 
and could not be settled by the General Assembly · they 
ce:tainly co~ld not be settled by the Secretary-G~eral. 
Hts delegation had already drawn attention to the fact 
that Mr. Hammarskjold's attempts to secure the Fifth 
Committee's endorsement of the decisions which he had 
taken on those matters constituted a flagrant violation 
of the Charter, a violation which would have grave con­
sequences for the Organization itself and for the peace 
of the world. His delegation had stated that any decision 
by the ~~neral Assembly to make an appropriation of 
$135 mtllton for ONUC in 1961 would be invalid and 
would be disregarded by the USSR; it proposed th<Lt the 
report of the Secretariat (A/ 4703), which was dealing 
wtth matters solely within the province of the Security 
Council, should be forwarded to the Council. · 

25. The "United Nations operations" in the Congo 
were o:ganized in a one-sided way which was contrary 
to the 111terests of the Congolese people and to those of 
the countries of the African continent as a whole. It was 
~n acknowledged fact that, in any operation and above all 
m an operation of a highly political nature, the recruit­
ment and distribution. of staff was of particular impor­
tance; that was especially true where the operations in 
the c;ong? wer~ concerned. Th~ir purpose, according to 
the directiVes given by the Secunty Council, was to assist 
the Congolese Government headed by Mr. Patrice 
Lum_umba to. r~pel the aggression on the part of the 
Belgtan colomaltsts, whose aim it was to dismember the 
young Republic with a view to retaining their hold over 
Katanga and Kasai, where the Union miniere was mak­
ng en_ormous profits. In the event, as a result of the way 
n whtch Mr. Hammarskjold had recruited and distrib­
tted the ~taff, U nit_ed Nations action had had exactly 
he opposite effect: It was the ·colonialists who had been 
1elped, while 1the lawful Government had been prevented 
rom fulfilling its functions, and conditions had been 
:reated which had favoured the transfer of power to the 
::tckeys of the colonialists. 

:6. . All the senior posts were held by nationals of the 
Jmted States and of other countries belonging to the 
!If estern milit~ry alliances. For example, 62 per cent of 
he st~ff appomted to rhe Office of the Special Repre­
entatlve of the Secretary-General were nationals of the 
V estern Powers ; the heads of the administrative and 
nancial departtnents were United States nationals. It 
ras hardly necessary to say that that staff did not in­
lucie a single national of the USSR or of the other 
:Jcialist countries; not only so, but-and that was a 
:range thing in the case of operations associated with 
n African problem of major importance-there were 
nly two nationals of African countries on the staff of 
1e Special Representative. It was clear that, in the 
tatter of the distribution of staff assigned to that Office, 
1e Secretary-General was following the same policy as 
1 the case of the staff of the Secretariat as a whole. 

27. As for rhe military 'Sitaff-which did not include a 
single national of the socialist countries-more than 60 
per cent were nationals of the Western countries. In 
reply to the representative of Canada, who had claimed 
that there were no Canadian military personnel in the 
Congo, he would point out that the information on which 
the ~oviet delegation had based. itself had in no way 
?een mvented and had been provided by the Secretariat 
Itself. There were only twelve Africans all of whom 
were in subordi~te posts. At the Kamin~ base, out of a 
total >Staff of thirty-seven, twenty-seven were nationals 
of . countries which were members of \f\T estern military 
al!tances and there was not a single African. In all, 40.8 
per. cent of the staff assigned to "civilian operations" were 
nationals of those countries and all the senior posts were 
held by representatives of countries. of the North Atlantic 
Treaty Organization (NATO). The Office of the Chief 
of Civilian qperations, which contained only one Ghanaian 
and one Gumean, had been set up without the authority 
of the Security Council; it had taken over control and 
it had allowed the government of Mr. Patrice Lumumba 
to be deprived of all economic and financial aid and had 
permitted conditions to be created which were favourable 
to the coup d'etat by Mobutu' s gangs. In the general 
services and in the field offices, 60 per cent of the staff 
came from countries which were members of Western 
blocs and there were only five Africans. In all, 45 per 
c~nt ,~f. all the staff involved ifol "United N atio_ns opera· 
t10ns m the Congo were nationals of countnes which 
were members of \V estern alliances and nationals of 
those countries occ~pied all the senior posts ; the Africans 
represented a neg!tgible percentage. 

28. The question of the Congo beina one of major 
P?'l!t.ical import<l;llce, o_ne would have tho~ght that respon­
sibiltty for dealmg with it at Headquarters would have 
been entrusted exclusively to the Department of Political 
and Security Council Affairs. Mr. Hammarskjold, how­
ever, obviously held other views, as that Department was 
headed by a USSR national. In actual fact the over-all 
direction of the operations at HeadquaDter~ was in the 
hands of Mr. Cordier, a United States national, and of 
Mr. Bunche and his two immediate associates, all three 
of whom were likewise United States nationals. 

29 .. The re_ason ~1r. HammaDskjold had adopted such 
a biased <Lttitude 111 the recruitment and deployment of 
person.nel . was that his Congo policy was aimed not at 
conso!tdatmg that country's institutions and lawful Gov­
ernment. bt;.t, on the contrary, at strengthening the hand 
of the disstdent and pro-colonialist forces aligned behind 
Mobu~u, T~homb~, Ileo and Kalonji, as numerous repre­
sentatives, mclt~dmg Mr. Nkrumah, had pointed out at 
the curr~nt sessi~n. At the beginning of December 1%0, 
the Umted NatiOns senior consultant on finance had 
t;!ade the necessary arrangements for a loan of 500 mil­
!ton Congolese francs from the Ruanda-Urundi Bank of 
tssue, which was entirely under Belgian control, for the 
purpose of strengthening the position of the puppets Ileo 
an~ Mobut?. The Un~ted Nations had also play~d an 
active part 111 the grantmg of another loan of 250 million 
Congoles~ francs to Mobutu's gangs which had sent 
Mr. ~atnce Lumumba_ to Kat<l;llga and were responsible 
for hts death. Th~ Umted Nattons had done nothing to 
prevent Mr .. ~atnc~ Lumumba from being handed over 
to the colomaltsts; It had, on the contrary, deprived the 
lawful_ Government of t~e use of_ the broadcasting station 
and at~fields and had hmdered Its efforts to re-establi,sh 
order m t:J:e. countr;:. Far from having even tried to pre­
vent the dtsmtegratton of the young Republic it had on 
the contrary, actually contributed to that process. For 



22 General Assembly-Fifteenth Session-Fifth Committee 

instance, Mr. Hammarskjold, who had not wished to 
meet Mr. Patrice Lumumba, had hastened to call on 
Mr. Tshombe and had formally reviewed the latter's 
military gangs, thus providing the subject for a photo­
graph which was reproduced on the cover of the United 
Nations Review of September 1960 as a touching testi­
mony to the unilty between Mr. Hammarskjold and 
Mr. Tshombe. 
30. In view of the fact that the conduct of the opera­
tions in the Congo had run directly counter to the deci­
sions taken by the Security Council on 14 July, 22 July 
and 9 August 1960,2 the USSR delegaJtion had already 
indicated during the first part of the current session that 
it saw no reason to contribute to their financing; it had 
stated at the same time that it waived all claims for the 
reimbursement of the expenditure incurred by the USSR 
in transporting Ghanaian troops. It had pointed out that 
those mainly responsible, the Belgian colonialists, should 
bear the major burden of the expenses, and had stressed 
the need for urgent measures to put an end to the irre­
sponsible spending in the Congo in order to arrest the 
financial crisis confronting the United Nations. Lastly, 
it had proposed that the operations should be terminated 
within one month and all foreign troops withdrawn, so 
that the Congolese people could run their own affairs. 

31. As he had said before, the only correct solution to 
the crisis facing the United Nations was strict compli­
ance with the relevant provisions of the Charter, namely, 
Articles 11, 43 and 48, which made it clear that ques­
tions relating to the maintenance of peace and security 
were within the province of the Security Council. The 
General Assembly was not competent to deal with the 
questions covered in the Secretariat's report on opera­
tions which had been conducted in contravention of the 
Security Council decisions and to which the United 
Nations as such was not committed. It was only by 
adopting that solution that the United Nations would 
avoid irretrievable damage to its prestige in the eyes of 
the Member States witl:l all the serious consequences 
which that would entail. 

32. Mr. KLUTZNICK (United States of America), 
exercising his right of reply, said that the USSR repre­
sentative had merely restated the same idea, namely, that 
the question should be referred to the Security Council 
with the result that one began to wonder whether the 
USSR was or was not a member of the Council. Since 
the USSR was so anxious that the matter should be 

2Jbid. 

Printed in U.S.A. 

referred to the Security Council, why did it not do so 
itself? Continuous repetition did not make that idea any 
more convincing, especially as it was being repeated by 
a delegation with a seat in the Security Council. 
33. No sooner had the United States offered a volun­
tary contribution than the USSR representative had 
interpreted that step as a method of influencing and con­
trolling the Fifth Committee. In point of fact, the United 
States Government would welcome proposals for an 
alternative solution, which would relieve it of that excep­
tional burden. The United States Government having 
offered a contribution, it was now for the delegations as 
a whole to decide whether the offer should be accepted 
and, if so, on what conditions and to what extent; that 
was a collective responsibility. It was wholly incorrect to 
claim that the United States Government had offered 
help as a means of bringing pressure to bear on the 
Committee. 
34. In his approach to the problem he, a new-comer to 
the General Assembly, had the best interests of the 
United Nations at heart. There was no need to open a 
new chapter in the cold war. He would now ask the 
USSR representative in public, having already made the 
same request in private, to put forward constructive 
proposals instead of making constant references to the 
Security Council and avoiding the real problem, which 
was that of the allocation of responsibility and expenses. 
The United States was prepared to offer the USSR and 
all other States sincere and constructive co-operation. 
35. Mr. N'SELE (Congo (Leopoldville)) said he 
could not refrain from commenting on the tendentious 
statements by certain States whose ill-will was obvious 
and which resorted to delaying tactics instead of dealing 
with the questions on which the Fi£th Committee had to 
take a decision, namely, those relating to the financing of 
the costs incurred in the Congo and of the economic aid 
which he had requested in his capacity as representative 
of the Congo. The question of the legality of the Congo­
lese Government would not be decided in Prague or in 
any other capital. \iVhereas the United Nations should 
be relieving the poverty of the small and the weak, cer­
tain of its Members were acting exclusively in their own 
private interests and were a;sking that the issue should be 
referred to the Security Council so as to give the rank 
weeds they had sown in the Congo time to grow. A 
clear-cut decision, that would enable the Congoles~ 
Government, in its turn, to take the appropriate mea­
sures, should be adopted without delay. 

The meeting rose at 5.5 p.m. 

s~9513-July 1961-2,02 


